Public Document Pack
Monitoring Officer
Christopher Potter
County Hall, Newport, Isle of Wight PO30 1UD
Telephone (01983) 821000

Name of meeting

POLICY AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR HEALTH AND
SOCIAL CARE

Date

MONDAY 1 MARCH 2021

Time

5.00 PM

Venue
Members of the
committee
Co-opted Members

VIRTUAL (MS TEAMS)
Cllrs J Nicholson (Chairman), G Cameron, A Garratt, R Hollis,
J Howe, M Lilley and C Quirk
Chris Orchin (Healthwatch) (Voting)
Democratic Services Officer: Megan Tuckwell
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk

1.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To confirm as a true record the minutes of the meeting held 7 December 2020.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To invite Members to declare any interest they might have in the matters on the
agenda.

3.

Public Question Time - 15 Minutes Maximum
Questions must be put including the name and address of the questioner by
delivery in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic Services at
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk, no later than two clear working days before the
start of the meeting. Therefore the deadline for written questions will be
Wednesday, 24 February 2021.
To observe the meeting as a member of the public/press please use the link provided.
This link will be made available 24 hours prior to start of the meeting. Please ensure
you access the meeting in good time. Guidance on how to access the public meeting
can be found HERE. Committee members and pre-arranged attendees will be contacted
by Democratic Services to supply the appropriate link to participate in the meeting.
Details of this and other Council committee meetings can be viewed on the Isle of Wight
Council’s Committee website. This information may be available in alternative formats on
request.

Page 1

4.

Covid-19 Response - Update
To consider key activities and pressures for health and social care as the result of
Covid including; the latest data on infections and deaths, discharges from
hospital, long covid clinics, and the vaccination programme. To assist in this item
reference should be made to the following documents attached;

5.

(a)

Presentation from the IW NHS Trust (Pages 9 - 20)

(b)

Briefing paper from the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Partnership of CCGs
(Pages 21 - 24)

Update on Key Issues in Health and Social Care
To consider an update on issues raised at the last meeting, or new significant
issues arising since the last meeting:

6.

(a)

Appointment of three new locality home care providers (Adult Social Care)
(Pages 25 - 28)

(b)

CQC Inspection Report - Reablement and Outreach Support (Adult Social
Care) (Pages 29 - 46)

(c)

Progress with the implementation of the Mental Health Pathway including
changes to Woodlands and future service provision for patients with
dementia following the closure of Shackleton Ward. (IW NHS Trust)
(Reference to this item included within the slide pack at Item 4a)

Committee's Workplan (Pages 47 - 50)
To consider the future workplan and to identify any key issues that should be
included. Members are asked to note the attached survey being undertaken by
Healthwatch Isle of Wight that will identify its key priorities for 2021/22 and which
will need to be taken into account within the committee’s workplan to avoid
duplication.

7.

Members' Question Time
A question must be submitted by electronic mail to Democratic Services no later
than 5.00pm on Thursday, 25 February 2021.

CHRISTOPHER POTTER
Monitoring Officer
Friday, 19 February 2021

Page 2

Interests
If there is a matter on this agenda which may relate to an interest you or your partner or
spouse has or one you have disclosed in your register of interests, you must declare your
interest before the matter is discussed or when your interest becomes apparent. If the
matter relates to an interest in your register of pecuniary interests then you must take no
part in its consideration and you must leave the room for that item. Should you wish to
participate as a member of the public to express your views where public speaking is
allowed under the Council’s normal procedures, then you will need to seek a dispensation
to do so. Dispensations are considered by the Monitoring Officer following the submission
of a written request. Dispensations may take up to 2 weeks to be granted.
Members are reminded that it is a requirement of the Code of Conduct that they should
also keep their written Register of Interests up to date. Any changes to the interests
recorded on that form should be made as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 28
days of the change. A change would be necessary if, for example, your employment
changes, you move house or acquire any new property or land.
If you require more guidance on the Code of Conduct or are unsure whether you need to
record an interest on the written register you should take advice from the Monitoring
Officer – Christopher Potter on (01983) 821000, email christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk, or
Deputy
Monitoring
Officer
Justin Thorne
on
(01983)
821000,
email justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk.
Notice of recording
Please note that all meetings that are open to the public and press may be filmed or
recorded and/or commented on online by the council or any member of the public or press.
However, this activity must not disrupt the meeting, and if it does you will be asked to stop
and possibly to leave the meeting. This meeting may also be filmed for live and
subsequent broadcast (except any part of the meeting from which the press and public are
excluded).
If you wish to record, film or photograph the council meeting or if you believe that being
filmed or recorded would pose a risk to the safety of you or others then please speak with
the democratic services officer prior to that start of the meeting. Their contact details are
on the agenda papers.
If the press and public are excluded for part of a meeting because confidential or exempt
information is likely to be disclosed, there is no right to record that part of the meeting. All
recording and filming equipment must be removed from the meeting room when the public
and press are excluded.
If you require further information please see the council guide to reporting on council
meetings which can be found at
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note
All information that is recorded by the council is held in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 2018. For further information please contact Democratic Services at
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk
Page 3

Due to Coronavirus, it is not possible to ask an oral question in person, all questions
must be submitted in writing by the date shown on the agenda please see Procedure
Rules for the regulation of proceedings – Cabinet and Committees

Page 4

Agenda Item 1

Name of meeting
Date and Time
Venue
Present
Also Present

POLICY AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR HEALTH AND
SOCIAL CARE
MONDAY 7 DECEMBER 2020 COMMENCING AT 5.00 PM
VIRTUAL (MS TEAMS)
Cllrs J Nicholson (Chairman), G Cameron, A Garratt, R Hollis,
J Howe and M Lilley
Cllrs D Andre, C Mosdell, and L Peacey-Wilcox
Simon Bryant, Laura Gaudion,
Thistlewood, Megan Tuckwell

John

Metcalfe,

Paul

Darren Cattell, Claire Gowland, Lesley Stevens, Alice Webster
(IW NHS Trust), Michele Legg (IW CCG), Joanna Smith
(Healthwatch), Ian Bennett (Residential Sector)
11.

Minutes
RESOLVED:
THAT the minutes of the meeting held 14 September 2020 be confirmed.

12.

Declarations of Interest
Cllr Andrew Garratt declared an interest in any matters relating to the IW NHS Trust
as his husband was applying to the nursing bank.
Cllr Andrew Garratt declared an interest in any matters relating to local authority
care placements as relative was permanently placed in a care home.
Cllr Michael Lilley declared an interest in any matters relating to the voluntary
sector, as chairman of the Isle of Wight Voluntary Sector Forum.
Cllr John Howe declared an interest as the chairman of the Patient Participation
Group at West Wight Health Centre, and as the chairman of the Abbeyfield Society
in Totland.

13.

Public Question Time - 15 Minutes Maximum
No public questions were received.

Page 5

14.

The Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic on the Care Sector
As agreed at the last meeting, representatives of the Island’s residential care,
nursing home and domiciliary care sector were invited to outline the how the
pandemic had impacted upon their services.
The Director of the Isle of Wight Care Partnership was in attendance to report to the
committee. It was advised that the pandemic had had a huge impact on care home
providers, particularly on those which experienced an outbreak. This in turn had an
impact on the workforce and emerging issues now included stress and the mental
wellbeing of staff. Members received an overview of additional funding and were
advised that the council had been supportive of the sector and had not caused any
unnecessary delays.
Questions were raised and discussion took place regarding deaths in care homes,
hospital discharge arrangements, and the economic recovery of the sector.
RESOLVED:
THAT the committee formally thanks all staff in the Island’s residential care, nursing
home and domiciliary care sector for its response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

15.

Update on Key Issues in Health and Social Care
15.1

Public Health

The Director of Public Health presented a briefing note (Appendix 1) which provided
an update on key public health issues. This included an overview of Covid-19
activities, including; the current position, tier 1 allocation, testing arrangements, the
track-and-trace programme, and vaccination planning. Members received an update
on public health service provisions, which included developments with the smoking
cessation, weight management, and drug and alcohol misuse services.
Questions were raised regarding the accessibility of lateral flow testing to enable
care home visitations and concerns were raised around the substantial resources
needed to deliver this at scale. It was confirmed that lateral flow testing was not
entirely reliable and should therefore only be used in conjunction with other
measures such as PPE and social distancing.
Discussion took place regarding planning for the long-term Covid-19 impact on
wellbeing and mental health, and the Island’s tier 1 status.
Questions were raised regarding the storage and distribution of the vaccine.
Members were reassured that there was the facility to store vaccines on the Island.
Those first to receive the vaccine were agreed nationally by NHS England and the
Clinical Chair of the IW CCG advised that the roll-out would commence from the
week beginning 14 December 2020.
RESOLVED:
THAT the update be noted.

Page 6

15.2

IW CCG

The Director of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities of the IW NHS Trust
delivered presentation on the mental health recovery pathway implementation plan
(Appendix 2), which included an update on the future use of Shackleton Ward.
Members expressed support for the plans and discussion took place regarding
dementia beds and mainland placements.
The Clinical Chair of the IWCCG provided an update on primary care services and
advised that they were operational and could be accessed if needed.
Concerns were raised regarding access to dental services on the Island, including;
waiting lists, affordability, the availability of NHS dentists, and specialist dental
services. Members thanked Healthwatch for raising the issue and agreed that this
was a significant issue to be discussed at the next meeting. The Chairman agreed
to escalate the concerns with NHS England.
The chairman advised that a series of concerns had been brought to his attention
through the Cowes/ Northwood Place Plan, the Community Resilience Project, and
through individual experiences being relayed to local Councillors around difficulties
alleged in obtaining satisfactory service from Cowes Medical Centre, which was said
to be causing unnecessary stress, delay and frustration to patients. The chairman
asked that the IWCCG investigate the issues. It was agreed that the IWCCG should
investigate the matter and provide a written report to a future meeting of the
committee.
RESOLVED:
i.

THAT the mental health recovery pathway implementation plan be supported.

ii. THAT the concerns around dental services on the Island be escalated through
the committee to NHS England and be considered by the committee at its next
meeting due to be held on 1 March 2021.
iii. THAT the IWCCG be requested to investigate the matter and provide a written
report to a future meeting of the committee.
15.3 IW NHS Trust
Members considered the report on performance and quality, winter preparedness,
response to Covid-19, the recovery of services and key challenges, temporary
change to leadership of Community Services, and staff recognition.
The Deputy Chief Operating Officer provided a further update on outpatient activity,
diagnostic imaging, winter planning, and infection control, and the Director of
Nursing provided an update on the physiotherapy service. It was advised that the
planned CQC visit had been postponed and no new date was scheduled.
Questions raised regarding the sustainability of the Trust and it was clarified areas
of risks relate to workforce and premium services.
RESOLVED:
Page 7

THAT the update be noted.
15.4 Adult Social Care
The Interim Director of Adult Social Care provided a verbal update on Covid-19. It
was highlighted that staffing levels across the directorate remained within the
normal range and the human resources and learning and development teams were
thanked for their assistance in supporting a resilient workforce by ensuring staff had
access to mental health support. Members were advised that the adult social care
winter plan had been prepared in October 2020 and was available to view online.
Discussion took place regarding performance and budget data included within the
performance report submitted to the Cabinet on 12 November 2020 (Quarter 2
2020-21).
RESOLVED:

16.

THAT the update be noted.
Workplan
The chairman invited all partners to forward items for possible inclusion in the
workplan.
RESOLVED:
THAT the workplan be noted.

17.

Members' Question Time
No member’s questions were received.

CHAIRMAN

Page 8

Page 9

1 March 2021

Agenda Item 4a

Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Adult
Social Care and Health

Introduction

Page 10

This presentation addresses the issues that the Trust has been asked to update the
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Adult Social Care and Health on:
• Discharges and flow through the Trust
• GP referrals across practices
• Staff sickness and absence
• Mutual Aid to support the response to Covid-19
• Actions to support the future of Trust services
• Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Update

Discharges and flow through the Trust
We were asked to assure the Committee on safe flow through the Trust and to identify any
areas where they could assist with blockages.

Page 11

• COVID Challenges in the Acute
• Ever changing bed base – More Covid-Positive Admissions more positive beds, More Covid-Negative Admissions – ability to flex
• Balancing the beds and needs of Medically fit Covid-positive patients v Medically fit post Covid-positive patients v Medically fit patients
in contact with Covid-positive person v Medically fit Covid-negative patients
• Quarantine areas - Exposure of a patient to Covid-positive patients resulting in a period of quarantine (10 days) unable to mix
quarantine patients as this resets the clock
• Trapped patients and beds
• Community Bed Challenges
• Designated Covid-positive beds – insufficient capacity (care homes not accepting)
• Designated Covid-positive beds – over capacity preventing Covid-negative discharges
• Limited ability to flex beds between Covid-positive and negative patients
• Care Homes and Packages of Care – Challenges
• Up to 40% capacity impacted by bed / home closures
• Ability to provide packages of care for Covid-positive and Covid-exposed patients
• Patient Transport capacity impacted by social distancing
• Staff shortages due to illness or self isolation

Response
• Integrated Discharge Team
•
•
•
•

Multi-disciplinary / agency Team working across the Acute, Community and Adult Social Care
Occupational Therapists, Reablement services, Adult Social Care, Nursing Staff, Discharge co-ordinators, Hospital Social Work Team and
Managers
Strong links with care homes through single point of commissioning
Flexible, Creative, Forward Thinking and Solution Focused

• Flexible Community Beds
Page 12

•
•

Flexed up 23 Covid-positive community capacity
Plans to adapt a ward to expand the beds by a further 15 beds if required

• Patient Hotel
•
•

20 beds commissioned by the CCG to provide step down capacity for non-covid patients waiting packages of care or placement
Single Point of Care (SPOC) purchase of additional care home beds

• St John’s Ambulance & Fire service
•
•

St John’s provided two additional ambulances to support patients’ transfer to hospital
Fire service provided personal to drive ambulances

• Responsive Management Team
•
•
•

Daily 17.30 Cross System Response Meeting (CCG, Hospital, Adult Social Care and Community senior managers)
Adapting policies and procedures across the system to support flow and meet changing needs (at pace)
Planning for the future – long term recommendations

Committee asked to continue to support integrated working

GP referrals across practices
The Committee asked us to identify whether there is any outlying practices to the general trends of GP
referrals on the Island
• Wave 1 – Referrals reduced to 25% of Pre-Covid levels
• Recovery 1 – Referrals slowly started to recover but took until December to get to 87% of Pre-Covid levels
• Wave 2 – Referrals have reduced to 65% of Pre-Covid Levels
Page 13

Areas of Concern
• Cancer Referrals down and first cancer treatments down by approximately 30% - Significant concern with Urology, Head &
Neck and Lung – patients presenting with advanced diagnosis
• Frail Elderly – not accessing primary care presenting at ED with advanced illness and consequently requiring admission
that could have been avoided
• Mental Health Referrals are anticipated to increase sharply with more people in crisis as opposed to starting to feel unwell
No significant outlier identified

Staff sickness and absence

Page 14

The Committee requested an update on the impact of our services on staff
sickness and absence.
• The following slide reports on the hotspots for staff absence and the support
offered to staff.

Staff Absence & Support

Support:
•
•

•

Absence Summary:

•
•

Page 15

•
•

Sickness absence rate at Month 9 = 4.6%
Notable hotspots are evident in the: Ambulance Division & Community
Division
The highest reason for sickness absence in these two areas is Covid-19
related. However, the Trust overall highest cause of sickness absence
remains “Stress, Anxiety & Depression”.
In order to maintain grip and control of absence, a daily report is now
produced which supports decision making around bank/agency
allocation.

Remote Working:
•
•

•
•
•

A comprehensive programme of Health & Wellbeing interventions has
been introduced providing physical & psychological support
In order to support staff experiencing “Stress, Anxiety & Depression”,
the Trust provides specialist Mental Health Support through the
Occupational Health team as part of the Health & Wellbeing offer. This
enables the provision of counselling and appropriate signposting to
further services.
Occupational Health provide further support to staff and managers
through the provision of:
• Consultant Support
• Physiotherapy/Back Care Support
• Risk Assessment Programme – This ensures our staff are
working in safe environments with appropriate support
Safe Staffing is a key priority and this is maintained through bank &
agency cover.
A Central Staff Allocation Hub has been established to enable
appropriate skilled redeployment of staff to fill any staffing gaps
caused by sickness and absence.
The Trust has been supported by military personnel who were
deployed across the organisation to support the sustainability of our
services.

As a Trust we have promoted remote working where appropriate and have provided equipment and managerial support to manage “Agile & Flexible
Working” across services. This has reduced footfall within the Trust site and reduced risk of infection.
The Trust is working to mitigate against the impact of potential isolation caused by consistent remote working and has established numerous Networks
to engage our people (e.g. Working from Home Network) and these see positive engagement across our Divisions.

Health & Wellbeing

Objective:
Priorities:

The workforce is supported to remain healthy, with a focus on addressing major health and lifestyle issues that affect individual staff and
the wider population

Progress:

Page 16

1. Leadership and Management
• Health and Wellbeing Check-in/Appraisal compliance at 74.1%
• Wellbeing Hub with up to date information and resources for staff available on the Covid Hub
• Pilot Delivery of Wellbeing Seminars in Community Division and Mental Health & Learning Disabilities Rehabilitation and
Recovery Organisational Change
2. Data and Communication
• Thrive Monthly Health and Wellbeing Newsletter promoting staff stories and wellbeing information on services available
inside and outside the organisation
• Trust Facebook Page raising awareness of health and wellbeing
3. Healthy Work Environment
• Occupational Health offering a 24 hour phone line and management of Covid-19 Risk Assessments
• Agile Working A line manager network established with health and safety remote sessions being delivered. We are
providing further support in managing agile working resources.
4. Mental Health
• ‘Listening Ear’ service for staff to have a safe and confidential place to have a wellbeing check-in with a trained coach
• Listening Ear ‘Safe Spaces’ hosting virtual safe spaces for teams, groups or individuals to offload and reflect
• Psychological formulation of support via ‘Care Spaces’ and ‘Taking Care to Give Care’ to teams working throughout the
pandemic
• 15 minute Mindfulness sessions for all teams on request, delivered by our Consultant Clinical Psychologist
• ‘Mindful Monday’ delivered by our Consultant Clinical Psychologist via our staff Facebook page
5. Musculoskeletal (MSK)
• Physical health promotion including promotion of the oneyou public health campaign
• Yoga being active programme
• MSK Fast Track Referral process in place
6. Healthy Lifestyle
• Promotion of NHS England/Improvement and system wide offers
• Working from Home staff support network including health tips and resources
• Menopause Matters local network supporting each other, 3 ambassadors being trained to roll out awareness sessions
• Wellbeing Champions Programme support the health and wellbeing agenda and embed within teams
• Financial Wellbeing promotion of virtual sessions available to all staff

Mutual Aid to support the response to Covid19

Page 17

The Committee asked how are we using the offers of help in our response to the Covid19 pandemic
• We have suspended some non-urgent services and redeployed staff into areas responding to
the pandemic and also into other urgent services. In addition, we have redeployed staff from
corporate services to provide clinical support type services where staff skills are transferable.
• We continue to work with the military who are providing non-clinical support. This support is
much appreciated by our staff and the soldiers are reported to be enjoying the work.
• We are using Fire & Rescue personnel within our Ambulance service which is helping to
release some of the pressure experienced on the frontline with staff sickness.
• Across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight system there is a process of mutual aid for any spare
critical care bed capacity. We have transferred a small number of critical care patients to the
mainland to ensure appropriate care can be given in another centre where we have been
under significant pressure.
• We have offered patients the opportunity to receive Independent Sector Elective treatment on
the mainland. Unfortunately the take up of this has not been as high as we would have liked
and we are now seeking additional on Island capacity to provide this treatment.
• We are working with our new Healthcare partners to review the thresholds for care that we
provide to ensure that these are aligned with those of our partners.

Actions to support the future of Trust services

Page 18

The Committee requested an update on the improvements to our facilities that would
enable us to better respond to demands for our care in the future
• We have secured a significant amount of capital funding which we will invest in our
buildings and IT systems to ensure that they make our services suitable for our current
and future needs. This includes investing in services at St Marys and within our Island
community. We are developing business cases to be able to draw down the money for
these schemes.
• We have an on-going challenge in recruiting staff to some services and in some
specialties. We are working with our partners to address this through recruitment
initiatives such as joint posts with Portsmouth Hospitals University NHS Trust in Stoke
services for example.
• Our work with our strategic partners is identifying areas where we can strengthen our
resilience through improved processes and service redesign in Urology services for
example.

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Update
We were asked to update the Committee on key areas of Mental Health and
Learning Disabilities (MH&LD) services
• The new MH&LD leadership structure is now in place, in line with the new strategy. This includes a new Director of
Operations and Commissioning post, which is shared between the Trust and CCG, and a new locality manager post which
is shared between Trust physical and mental health community services.
Page 19

• The work to implement the ‘No Wrong Door’ strategy is progressing despite the operational pressures relating to Covid.
This includes:

• Plan to change the mental health rehabilitation service based in Woodlands from a bed based to a community service is on track to
happen from 1st April 2021. Staff organisational change process in progress. Service has stopped accepting admissions of people
detained under the Mental Health Act in preparation for the change. Building works will start in March.
• Dementia services review is in progress, supported by senior clinicians in Solent NHS Trust
• South Locality pilot is progressing well. We are working very closely with primary care, LA, third sector and community physical health
colleagues to develop an integrated model of care, and test ideas for new ways of working in the South locality, for wider
implementation across all localities.

• We are working with colleagues in the ICS to model the impact of Covid on mental health and learning disability services. It
is anticipated that there will be an increase in demand due to suppressed demand through lockdown, direct impacts of
Covid on mental health (e.g. long Covid, PTSD, bereavement, psychological impacts of social isolation), and wider impacts
of socioeconomic changes on health and wellbeing. We are already seeing an increase in acuity of presentations to our
services, and this is resulting in increased pressure on our mental health acute services.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4b

12 February 2021

Hampshire and Isle of Wight COVID-19 Vaccination Programme
Briefing
Vaccination programme update
We are very pleased to report that more than 400,000 doses of the COVID-19 vaccine
have now been delivered to our communities in Hampshire and the Isle of Wight.
Across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care System (ICS) and Frimley Health
and Care ICS more than 93% of people aged 80 and over have received their first dose. A
breakdown of vaccination figures by NHS region and Integrated Care Systems/
Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships is available here and is regularly updated.
We continue to perform very well in terms of vaccination rates across South East and in
other parts of the country and remain on track to meet the Government’s ambition of
offering everyone in the first four priority groups identified by the Joint Committee on
Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) a first dose of the vaccine by Monday (15 February).
This achievement is testament to the incredible ongoing efforts of colleagues, volunteers
and partners who continue to work at pace to deliver the vaccination programme locally.
We continue to receive positive feedback from our communities about their experiences
and we would like to extend our thanks to everyone involved in supporting the programme.
A further COVID-19 vaccination service is due to open at The Harlington in Fleet town
centre next week, providing additional choice for residents in Fleet who are registered with
Branksomewood Medical Centre, Fleet Medical Centre and Richmond Surgery. Frimley
Health and Care ICS has confirmed that the majority of Fleet residents in the first four
priority groups have now had their first dose of the vaccine. The Harlington site will
therefore offer vaccine appointments for the next priority cohort of patients identified by the
JCVI (starting with those aged 65 and over) once national guidance has been issued to
begin offering the vaccine to this group. Further information is available here.
This additional service will bring the total number of vaccination sites across Hampshire
and the Isle of Wight to 64. Information on all available sites can be found here.
Roll-out of the vaccination programme
Delivering the vaccine to individuals in priority groups 1-4, as identified by the JCVI,
remains our absolute priority. These groups are:
Page 21





care home residents and staff
those aged 80 and over and frontline health and social care workers
those aged 75 and over



those aged 70 and over and clinically extremely vulnerable individuals

We continue to do all we can to encourage everyone eligible for the vaccine to take up the
offer of an appointment. This includes ongoing work with our health and care partners to
reduce any potential inequalities related to the vaccination programme.
Anyone aged 80 or over who has not yet received their first dose of the vaccine for any
reason, for example due to ill health, is being contacted and followed up. We also continue
to contact those aged 70 and over and people who are clinically extremely vulnerable to
offer them the vaccine.
Individuals aged 70 and over who have not yet been invited to be vaccinated but would
like to be are also being asked to contact the NHS to arrange an appointment following a
national announcement earlier this week.
People had previously been asked to wait until they were contacted by the NHS to ensure
that those who are most at risk from COVID-19 are protected first. However those aged 70
and over can now contact the NHS directly in one of the following ways if they have not yet
received an invitation, to ensure that as many people in priority groups 1-4 as possible can
be vaccinated by 15 February:




By visiting the national booking service at www.nhs.uk/covid-vaccination
By calling 119 free of charge between 7am and 11pm seven days a week
If a suitable and convenient slot is not available people can also call their GP
practice.

How the vaccine is delivered
Everyone invited to have the vaccine will need an appointment, including those aged 70
and over who have not yet received an invitation and contact the NHS directly.
Most people who are invited by letter will have the opportunity to go onto the national
booking system and book an appointment slot or call 119. If people are initially unable to
book an appointment at their local vaccination centre, they should continue to check the
booking system as more slots are regularly added.
If an individual receives more than one invitation, such as a letter inviting them to attend a
vaccination centre or pharmacy where applicable, an invitation from their GP or to attend
their local hospital, they can choose where they would like to attend. This is to ensure that
we offer as much choice and convenience as possible. However if an individual has made
an appointment and then decides to attend another site, it is important that they cancel
one of the appointments to enable us to offer the slot to someone else and ensure that as
many people as possible are vaccinated.
Page 22

Individuals who are offered the choice of attending a pharmacy when they receive their
invitation letter can make an appointment or wait to be contacted by their GP and arrange
to be vaccinated at a GP-led or hospital site if they prefer.
Everyone awaiting a vaccination invitation is reminded to:



make sure they are registered with a GP practice
ensure their GP practice has up-to-date contact details for them – especially a
mobile phone number if they have one. This makes it quicker and easier for us to
get in touch. There is no need to call us with this information, it can be updated
online through the practice website

Following national guidance
It remains as important as ever that we all continue to follow the national guidance to help
reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission and:





stay at home as much as possible
wear a face covering when out in the community
observe social distancing measures
continue to wash hands regularly

Frequently asked questions
We continue to update the frequently asked questions on our website. If you have a query
that is not answered in our frequently asked questions, please email the Hampshire and
the Isle of Wight Vaccination Team at whccg.covid.vaccination.enquiries@nhs.net.
Further information
We will continue to provide regular updates on the vaccination programme. Additional
information including previous editions of this update are available on our webpages.





For more information on the vaccine, please visit www.nhs.uk/covid-vaccination.
Vaccination uptake figures for the UK is published on a daily and weekly basis here
An easy read information leaflet about the COVID-19 vaccination is available here
Follow and share messages from our social media accounts:
o Twitter: @HIOW_CCGs / @NHSSotonCityCCG / @portsmouthCCG /
@NEHFCCG
o Facebook: @HIOWPartnershipCCGs / @westhampshireccg /
@urgentcarepompey / @NHSSouthampton / @HCPortsmouth /
@northeasthampshireandfarnhamCCG
o Instagram: @westhantsccg

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5a
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Health and Social Care – 01/03/2021

Paper Title:

Home Care arrangements from 2021 - 2029

Author:

Laura Gaudion – Interim Director for Adult Social Care and Housing Needs

Background/
Context:

Item no:

This paper is intended to provide the Isle of wight Council Policy and Scrutiny Committee for
Health and Social Care with an overview of the recent developments in relation to the
provision of home care for island residents. As members will be aware a number of people on
the Island receive care and support in their own home.
Should they be eligible under the Care Act criteria, the council funds the cost of that care and
support in its entirety or in part, subject to a mandated financial assessment.
The council is required, as a result of its statutory procurement duties (and those relating to
ensuring value for money) to formally advertise any contract opportunity in line not only with
the Public Procurement Regulations but also as set out in the council’s constitution.
Prior to 2021, the council commissioned home care through a dynamic purchase system
provided by a third party. Due to increasing costs of that third-party contract, and a need to
ensure compliance with our procurement obligations, it was necessary to consider how care
and support services for people in their own homes could be commissioned. Consideration of
the recommissioning of these services began in 2018 to ensure a smooth transition to any
new arrangements, together with providing time to facilitate a considered approach in order to
maintain continuity of care for those who receive care and support.
The need to re-tender our home care services also provided an opportunity to consider if the
services we were providing met with the needs and wants of our local population. Our review
of existing home care (domiciliary care) services revealed that we could do better. Previously
we have commissioned services on a time and task basis. Our local residents accessing this
offer indicated a desire for greater flexibility, more person centred services, and support that
was focused on personal outcomes - not simply support that provided a half hour of care at
07:30 etc.
In January 2018 we approached the Institute of Public Care (IPC) Oxford Brookes University
to assist us in moving towards a more outcome focused model of home care. We made a
commitment to working in partnership with the local domiciliary care market to facilitate a
change in the way in which their services might be commissioned in the future.
Our aim was to define and refine our vision to help people to improve or maintain their
wellbeing and to live as independently as possible. Put succinctly, the strategy for ASC was
to close the three gaps between: the quality of care and support; users’ and carers’ outcomes
and well-being; and organisational efficiency and finance. The success of the strategy,
therefore, will inevitably be measured by how much these gaps can be narrowed over time.
This aligned with the Care Close to Home Strategy and with the Health and Care Plan.

Test and
learn project

With the Support of IPC we embarked on a test and learn project with local providers to
explore how we could introduce a new way of providing home care for island residents. This
project shaped the way in which we have procured new home care services for the Island
and more importantly this project also shaped the service offer now available to local people.
The brief issued to IPC by commissioners was to:
“… help them to support the independent sector providers to move to an outcomes focused

Page 25

approach. … preparing for the re-tendering of a number of care service contracts over the
next 18 months that will require providers of care to work in the spirit and discipline of
outcome based commissioning. … IPC will support the commissioners during this period to
engage, in particular with domiciliary care providers, to explore how the transition to this way
of working can be made successfully through a co-produced, “test and learn” approach.”
From early 2018 to early 2020 the commissioning team worked with IPC and the local
domiciliary care sector to look at how we can move from a ‘time and task’ model of care
provision to care and support focused on the delivery of outcomes for those we serve.
Commissioner were keen to ensure that this was done collaboratively and as a result
undertook significant market engagement to ensure that local providers were given the
opportunity to participate in the test and learn project.
Collaboration
with local
providers

Our collaboration with local providers was undertaken in 3 separate stages:
Stage 1 – Through a series of engagement activities (individual interviews and workshops)
with local providers we sought to build a picture of the readiness of providers for the transition
to outcomes-based working. Through this engagement, supported by IPC, we were able to
construct a consensus of what was meant by “outcomes”, what commissioning and service
delivery could look like and how we could evidence and measure outcomes, challenges and
opportunities. This stage informed the final service specification that was part of the contract
opportunity advertised.
Stage 2 – “Test and Learn” shadow approach to outcome-based commissioning and
delivery took place. For 9 months we worked with local providers who wanted to participate in
the project to develop new ways of working and transition to outcome focused care and
support. Through an agreed engagement programme, commissioners, providers, carers,
operational staff across health and social care and people who were receiving care and
support services worked together to ‘trial’ different approaches and to learn from that
experience. That learning was shared with all local providers through regular feedback
sessions.
Stage 3 – Feedback to the domiciliary care marketplace: We were keen to ensure that all
local providers were able to share the learning from our collaboration and following
completion of the test and learn project we hosted a number of workshops to ensure that this
information was readily available. IPC provided a written report in relation to the project and
this was shared with the Isle of Wight Care Partnership and directly with all CQC registered
providers across the Island (including care home providers).
There has been a real focus on shifting the relationship with providers so that moving forward
greater emphasis is placed on partnership working.

Route to
Market

The route to market for the recommissioning of home care was not determined until after
collaboration had concluded.
A review of the existing route to market, the Dynamic Purchase System (DPS), revealed
that following its implementation the DPS increased the number of providers in our local
marketplace but that this had a knock-on effect.
As a result of a limited workforce whilst the number of providers increased, we had not
seen an increase in capacity to meet demand or growth in local businesses. The way in
which care and support was allocated through the DPS reduced the ability for local
providers to plan for growth and to invest or reinvest in business development as there
was no ‘guarantee’ of work.
The workforce and development challenges were reflected in the challenges the council
faced to source care and support for people and this often resulted in short term
residential care placements which on occasion became permanent.

Page 26

The challenges in managing demand and provider fragility gave rise to the
recommissioning of home care with a new model. We have sought to develop a prime
provider model which is linked to each of the localities. As members will be aware recent
years have seen the development of locality services for health and social care and the
new home care contracts are directly linked to these localities to support an integrated
working system. This means that for local residents there is greater access to services
and less risk of them needing to approach multiple organisations if they need help and
support.
In addition, the new model enables providers to focus on specific geographical areas
focusing on growth of the workforce, improved recruitment and retention opportunities,
greater clarity in terms of work allocation and building strong and sustainable relationships
with statutory partners.
The new home care services were procured through a robust procurement process.
We will work with our procurement colleagues to ensure a competitive process.
Consideration is currently being given to how we can support our local marketplace
through this, and we are looking at models of delivery requiring subcontracting of local
workforce. We are also focusing on how social value can be incorporated into the
requirement for home support moving forward. The proposals in relation to the route to
market will be finalised after the project concludes so that providers, and those we serve,
have every opportunity to be involved in the service design moving forward.

Procurement
of new home
care
providers:

The new partners for the delivery of home care across the island have been selected
following a robust and transparent procurement exercise which was fully compliant with the
current procurement legislation.
Prior to advertising the contract opportunity, the council engaged with local providers to
ensure that they were not only aware of the contract opportunity but received support to
access the opportunity and to submit a tender should they choose to do so. In addition, the
council provided training sessions to support local providers to access and use the
procurement systems and portal.
The award of contracts is the culmination of two years of preparatory work in partnership with
the people who use these services, local providers, the Institute of Public Care and voluntary
partners who work with our community.
The council received 16 tender submissions, each of which was evaluated against the
evaluation criteria which was shared with anyone expressing an interest in the contract
opportunity prior to them being required to submit their tender. Each of the evaluation criteria
were based on a scoring methodology that was also published with the contract opportunity.
In addition to a requirement to submit a formal written tender, providers were invited to
present their proposals to the evaluation panel to help to ‘bring it to life’. The Evaluation panel
were supported by the council’s procurement team throughout the process.
The contract was not determined on price, as for many years the council has undertaken an
annual fee review and fixed the price for care and support in this area. This remains the case.
The locality partners will be paid for care and support delivered and evidenced through a
robust, existing, verification method.

Conclusion

From 1st February 2021 Nobilis Care, CSN Carewatch and First City Nursing will ensure that
people continue to receive quality care and support, with a renewed focus on maximising and
maintaining independence. The new contracts will be in place for 8 years with the option to
extend for up to a further 2 years at the council’s sole discretion.
Whilst 2 of our new partners are not originally Island providers their Island footprint has been

Page 27

developed through the acquisition of existing local provision. The new contracts continue to
see support being delivered for Island people by our existing Island workforce.
The work by the Isle of Wight Council and partners on the Island has been of interest to other
local authorities and to several national bodies. The team have recently delivered sessions
outlining our progress for Think Local Act Personal (TLAP), the Institute of Public Care and
the Association of Directors of Adult Social Care on the progress we have been making. A
case study published by the Local Government Associations can also be found at
https://www.local.gov.uk/collaboration-care-providers-improving-quality-through-relationships0
Key features of the new contracts include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a move away from time and task support to outcome focused care and support
stabilisation of the local home care market
greater capacity to support people to live at home
a long-term commitment to the provision of home support on the Island
service provision focused on supporting people to maintain their independence
a focus on prevention and ensuring access to community-based services
improving flexibility in terms of responsiveness to service provision so that temporary
and unpredictable fluctuations in needs can be met
improving support for the hospital with prompt safe discharges

Whilst the council now only contracts with 3 lead providers in order to support the wider
sector there is a requirement built into our contract for sub-contracting. Each of the 3 lead
providers is required to sub-contract a minimum of 30% of the work referred to them by the
council to other local providers. This not only enables choice to be afforded to people who
access the care and support but also ensure that we continue to support the home care
sector more widely.
The changes in our route to market have no impact on existing care and support
arrangements. Care will continue to be provided for local residents by the agencies that
already support them. The new contracts will only impact on care and support arrangements:
1. that are new from 01/02/2021
2. that are significantly different to what is already commissioned for the individual
3. where the existing provider is unable or unwilling to continue to deliver the care and
support

Financial
Impact:

Decisions
Needed:

The new contract does not alter the funding arrangements for home care. The council pays a
fixed unit price for care and support in people’s homes delivered through home care
agencies. This will not change. The current unit price is £19.28 per hour. An annual fee
review exercise is conducted in consultation with local providers to determine any changes to
the unit price based on evidenced cost pressures, CPI and the impact of national living wage.
This process continues.
This briefing is provided for noting and for information only

Page 28

Agenda Item 5b

Isle of Wight Council

Adult Social Care,
Community Re-ablement &
Outreach
Inspection report
Sandown Civic Centre Building, Barrack Block
The Broadway, Sandown
Isle of Wight
PO36 9EA
Tel: 01983821000
Website: www.iow.gov.uk

Date of inspection visit:
15 December 2020
Date of publication:
14 January 2021

Ratings

Overall rating for this service

Good

Is the service safe?

Good

Is the service effective?

Good

Is the service caring?

Good

Is the service responsive?

Good

Is the service well-led?

Good

Page
2914 January 2021
1 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

Summary of findings
Overall summary
About the service
Adult Social Care Reablement and Outreach is a domiciliary care service registered to provide personal care
for people who require this due to old age, illness or disability. At the time of the inspection it was providing
care for approximately 85 people living on the Isle of Wight.
People's experience of using this service:
We received positive feedback from people about the service. All people who used the service spoke very
highly of the care staff.
People told us they felt safe and secure when receiving care.
Individual risk assessments and those relating to people's homes helped reduce risks to people while
maintaining their independence.
People told us they had been involved in care planning and care plans reflected people's individual needs
and choices.
People were cared for with kindness and compassion. Privacy, dignity and independence were promoted.
People were supported to meet their nutritional and hydration needs, and staff contacted healthcare
professionals when required.
Staff understood consent and were clear that people had the right to make their own choices.
Safe recruitment practices were followed, and appropriate checks were undertaken, which helped make
sure only suitable staff were employed to care for people in their own homes.
There were sufficient numbers of care staff to maintain the schedule of visits. Staff told us they felt
supported, received regular supervision and training.
People felt listened to and a complaints procedure was in place.
The provider monitored the quality of the service on a regular basis to ensure it continued to be safe and
met people's needs.
The service met the characteristics of Good in all areas. More information is in the full report.
Rating at last inspection:
This service was registered with us on 05/09/2019 and this is the first inspection.
Page
3014 January 2021
2 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

Why we inspected:
This was a planned inspection based on the registration date of the service.
Follow up:
We will continue our routine monitoring of the service.
For more details, please see the full report which is on the CQC website at www.cqc.org.uk

Page
3114 January 2021
3 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

The five questions we ask about services and what we found
We always ask the following five questions of services.

Is the service safe?

Good

The service was safe.
Details are in our safe findings below.

Is the service effective?

Good

The service was effective.
Details are in our effective findings below.

Is the service caring?

Good

The service was caring.
Details are in our caring findings below.

Is the service responsive?

Good

The service was responsive.
Details are in our responsive findings below.

Is the service well-led?
The service was well-led.
Details are in our well-led findings below.

Page
3214 January 2021
4 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

Good

Adult Social Care,
Community Re-ablement &
Outreach
Detailed findings

Background to this inspection
The inspection
We carried out this inspection under Section 60 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (the Act) as part of
our regulatory functions. We checked whether the provider was meeting the legal requirements and
regulations associated with the Act. We looked at the overall quality of the service and provided a rating for
the service under the Care Act 2014.
Inspection team
The inspection was undertaken by one inspector.
Service and service type
This is a domiciliary care service. It provides personal care as part of reablement to people living in their own
houses and flats. The service is primarily aimed at people being discharged from hospital although it also
works with some people to prevent hospital admissions.
Notice of inspection
We gave the service 24 hours' notice of the inspection visit as we needed to be sure relevant staff would be
available in the services office.
Not everyone received a regulated activity; CQC only inspects the service being received by people provided
with 'personal care'; help with tasks related to personal hygiene and eating. Where they do we also take into
account any wider social care provided.
The service had a manager registered with the Care Quality Commission. This means that they and the
Page
3314 January 2021
5 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

provider are legally responsible for how the service is run and for the quality and safety of the care provided.
Inspection site visit activity started on 15 December 2020 and ended on 24 December 2020. We visited the
office location on 15 December 2020 to see the registered manager and office staff; and to review care and
staff records.
What we did before the inspection
Before the inspection, we reviewed information we had received about the service, including registration
reports and notifications. Notifications are information about specific important events the service is legally
required to send to us.
The provider was not asked to complete a provider information return prior to this inspection. This is
information we require providers to send us to give some key information about the service, what the service
does well and improvements they plan to make. We took this into account when we inspected the service
and made the judgements in this report.
We used all of this information to plan our inspection.
During the inspection
We spoke with ten people (or their relatives) about their experience of the care provided. We spoke with the
nominated individual, registered manager, assistant manager, and six other care team members. We spoke
with one external social care professional.
We reviewed a range of records. This included five people's care records and medication records. We looked
at three staff files in relation to recruitment and staff supervision. A variety of records relating to the
management of the service, including, training, quality monitoring, policies and procedures were also
reviewed.

Page
3414 January 2021
6 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

Good

Is the service safe?
Our findings
Safe – this means we looked for evidence that people were protected from abuse and avoidable harm.
This is the first inspection for this service. This key question has been rated Good.
This meant people were safe and protected from avoidable harm.
Systems and processes to safeguard people from the risk of abuse
● Appropriate systems were in place to protect people from the risk of abuse.
● Everybody told us they felt safe and their property was respected. A relative told us, "I always feel they are
safe with them (care staff), they know what they are doing." A person said, "I'm not worried about anything, I
feel safe when they (care staff) are here."
● Staff had received safeguarding training and knew how to prevent, identify and report allegations of
abuse. One staff member said, "We did safeguarding training. If I had any (safeguarding) concerns I would
tell the office staff immediately, but I also know I can go to you (CQC) or the (local authority) safeguarding
team." Other care staff gave examples of when they had reported safeguarding concerns and were happy
with the action the management team had taken to ensure these were investigated and the person was
safe.
● Safeguarding incidents had been reported and investigated thoroughly, in liaison with the local
safeguarding team. The registered manager was clear about their safeguarding responsibilities and had
attended additional safeguarding training for managers.
Assessing risk, safety monitoring and management
● Risks to people were assessed, recorded clearly in their care plans and updated when people's needs
changed.
● People's risk assessments included areas such as mobility, use of equipment, health, medicine and
personal care. Senior staff had completed additional training to enable them to assess specific risks such as
the use of moving and handling equipment.
● Staff said they read care plans at the start of each care visit meaning they were updated about any risks
and how these should be managed.
● People's home and environmental risk assessments had been completed to promote the safety of both
people and staff. These considered the immediate living environment of the person, including lighting, the
condition of property, any pets and security.
● Business continuity plans were in place to ensure that individuals were prioritised in terms of risk during
crisis situations such as severe weather.
Staffing and recruitment
● There were sufficient numbers of staff available to keep people safe and provide the re-ablement service.
The registered manager and senior staff (re-ablement leaders) were clear that they would only accept new
referrals if they had enough staff in the correct part of the island to ensure they would be able to meet

Page
3514 January 2021
7 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

people's needs.
● Care staff told us two staff were always allocated when specific equipment to assist people to move safely
was required. This was also confirmed by a family member we spoke with. This meant equipment such as
hoists could be used safely.
● People said staff arrived when expected and stayed the appropriate length of time. One person said, "Yes,
they do try and stick to a regular time, sometimes it doesn't always happen if they have been held up, but we
know this might happen."
● The registered manager told us that short term staff absences were covered by existing staff members
including office staff who were all suitably trained to provide care for people.
● Recruitment procedures were robust to help ensure only suitable staff were employed.
Using medicines safely
● People's care records included specific information about the level of support people required with their
medicines; lists of people's prescribed medicines and information about who was responsible for ordering
further supplies of medicines.
● The service aimed to promote people to be independent with their medicines. Where people were
managing their own medicines an assessment of their ability to do this safely had been completed. When
staff had identified a person may not have been managing their medicines safely, all necessary action was
taken including seeking medical advice and reviewing the person's medicines care plan.
● Where staff were to provide support with, or administer medicines or topical creams, medicine
administration records (MARs) were in place. Senior staff reviewed these during two weekly reviews to
ensure staff were administering medicines as required. When the service was completed (usually before 42
days) MARs were returned to the office where they were audited along with other care records.
● Staff had been trained to administer medicines and had been assessed as competent to do so safely. This
was reassessed yearly or following any medicines errors.
● Where medicine errors had occurred, appropriate action had been taken by the registered manager to
investigate and change procedures to reduce the risk of recurrence.
Preventing and controlling infection
● We were assured that the service was taking appropriate action to prevent people and staff from catching
and spreading infections.
● Staff were trained in infection control. Additional guidance had been provided following the Covid-19
pandemic. One staff member said, "When it (Covid-19) started we all got information immediately about
what to do and the (pool) cars were stocked up with everything we needed."
● There were processes in place to manage the risk of infection and personal protective equipment (PPE)
such as disposable masks, gloves and aprons, were available for staff to use. The correct use of PPE was
monitored during unannounced observational visits made by senior staff.
● The Infection control policy had been updated to reflect the new risks posed by the pandemic and
appropriate actions had been introduced for the safety of staff and people receiving a re-ablement service.
Prior to the commencement of a service all people were required to have a negative Covid-19 test. All staff
employed by the service were now receiving weekly Covid-19 tests.
Learning lessons when things go wrong
● Where an incident or accident had occurred, the provider had robust procedures in place to investigate
the cause, learn lessons and take remedial action to prevent a recurrence.

Page
3614 January 2021
8 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

Good

Is the service effective?
Our findings
Effective – this means we looked for evidence that people's care, treatment and support achieved good
outcomes and promoted a good quality of life, based on best available evidence.
This is the first inspection for this service. This key question has been rated Good.
This meant people's outcomes were consistently good, and people's feedback confirmed this.
Assessing people's needs and choices; delivering care in line with standards, guidance and the law
● People's needs were assessed prior to the commencement of the service to ensure their needs could be
met. A relative said, "There was a care plan and we were asked things about [relative] before they started."
● Most people commenced receiving a reablement service following hospital discharge. The service had
senior staff based at the hospital meaning they could complete assessments prior to discharge. They said
this meant they could identify any equipment needed to enable care to be provided safely following the
person arriving home.
● A senior staff member was arranged to visit the person immediately on discharge to undertake a further
home-based assessment and prepare the person's care plan. Assessment included people's physical, social
and cultural needs. People, and relatives if appropriate, were involved in the assessment process and had
signed their assessments showing they agreed with the content.
● Care plans clearly identified people's reablement needs and the choices they had made about the care
and support they required. People were happy with the care they received. One person said, "I can't fault
them, they were all excellent, I wish we could have them back."
● Care staff told us that when they identified a change in people's needs, they would contact the office for a
reassessment and review of the person's care plan. They said that if they felt more time was needed to
complete a particular care visit the management team took prompt action to address this.
Staff support: induction, training, skills and experience
● The service ensured that staff had the necessary induction and training to provide them with the skills
required to meet people's needs. Staff applied learning effectively in line with best practice, which led to
good outcomes for people.
● People were confident in the staff's abilities. A person told us, "Yes, they know what they are doing, I like
them all."
● Staff received an induction into their role, which included the services essential core training. New staff
worked alongside more experienced staff until they felt confident and were competent to work directly with
people.
● Staff were also provided with additional training that was specific to people's individual needs, such as
catheter care. There was a process to ensure training was refreshed every year or as required. Staff
confirmed this. One staff member said, "We have lots of training, It's all online now (due to Covid-19) but it's
good." Senior staff had completed additional training to enable them to provide practical training in moving
and handling when required.
● There were systems to monitor training and records viewed showed that staff had completed necessary
Page
3714 January 2021
9 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

training for their roles.
● Staff told us they were supported in their roles and had regular one to one meetings with a designated
member of senior staff. This was to discuss their care practices and development opportunities and records
confirmed this. Unannounced observational visits were also undertaken to monitor staff performance and
provide advice or reassurance when required. A staff member said, "I feel very well supported; I can talk to
the management at any time if I need to, someone is always available."
Supporting people to eat and drink enough to maintain a balanced diet
● Staff ensured people had enough to eat and drink.
● Information about people's dietary requirements were included in their assessments and care plans.
● For most people a relative was responsible for shopping and preparing meals. Where this was not the case
the service was able to refer people to other support services for shopping. One staff member said "We can
do shopping if they don't have anything (on discharge from hospital). We then contact someone like age
concern to sort out a shopper for them."
● For some people the reablement goals seen included preparing their own meals. Staff described how they
could access equipment to make this easier for people such as perching stools and walker trolleys to
transport food and drinks from kitchens so these could be eaten safely in other parts of the home.
Staff working with other agencies to provide consistent, effective, timely care. Supporting people to live
healthier lives, access healthcare services and support
● The service was closely linked with local NHS hospital and community services with a view to preventing
unnecessary hospital admissions and ensuring people could be discharged from hospital in a prompt
manner. Some staff responsible for assessing people's needs prior to receiving a service, were based at the
local hospital.
● Community outreach staff worked with social services staff to ensure appropriate information was
available if the person required ongoing community support, which would be provided by another
domiciliary care service.
● Care plans included information about people's general health, current concerns, social information, reablement goals and level of assistance required. This could be shared should a person be admitted to
hospital or another service and allowed person centred care to be provided consistently. Where appropriate
staff were able to work alongside the new agency for a short time, which meant people received a smooth
transfer to a new community service.
● Staff worked well with external professionals to ensure people were supported to access health and social
care services when required. Records showed that staff sought timely support from external health and
social care professionals, when needed for people.
Ensuring consent to care and treatment in line with law and guidance
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 provides a legal framework for making particular decisions on behalf of
people who may lack the mental capacity to do so for themselves. The Act requires that, as far as possible,
people make their own decisions and are helped to do so when needed. When they lack mental capacity to
take particular decisions, any made on their behalf must be in their best interests and as least restrictive as
possible.
People can only be deprived of their liberty to receive care and treatment when this is in their best interests
and legally authorised under the MCA.
When people receive care and treatment in their own homes an application must be made to the Court of
Protection for them to authorise people to be deprived of their liberty.
Page
38 14 January 2021
10 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

We checked whether the service was working within the principles of the MCA
● People and relatives told us they had been involved in discussions about their care planning.
● Assessments and care plans had been signed by the person to show they agreed with the care which was
planned to be provided.
● Before providing care, staff sought verbal consent from people and gave them time to respond. One
relative told us "They listen to him and ask him what he needs them to do."
● Staff had received training in the Mental Capacity Act 2005 (MCA).
● Staff showed an understanding of the MCA. Staff were aware people were able to change their minds
about care and had the right to refuse care at any point. Records of care people had received included
information where people had declined planned care showing staff respected people's right to change their
minds. Where this may have placed people at risk appropriate action had been taken.

Pagereport
39 14 January 2021
11 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection

Good

Is the service caring?
Our findings
Caring – this means we looked for evidence that the service involved people and treated them with
compassion, kindness, dignity and respect.
This is the first inspection for this newly registered service. This key question has been rated good.
This meant people were supported and treated with dignity and respect; and involved as partners in their
care.
Ensuring people are well treated and supported; respecting equality and diversity
● People and relatives told us that staff were kind and caring and knew their preferences. A person said,
"The carers were so lovely, we always felt comfortable with them." Another person told us "I'm very happy
with the carers, they are kind." Whilst a relative said, "They are all kind and friendly." Other people and
relatives made similar positive comments.
● Staff had built up positive relationships with people. Staff spoke about their work and about people
warmly. Most people confirmed they had a regular team of care staff. A relative said, "We have had a regular
staff team, so that's been really good as we have got to know them."
● Care staff told us that before visiting a new person they were provided with information about the person.
This meant they would know important information such as equality and diversity or protected
characteristics before attending and therefore be better able to meet people's individual needs.
Supporting people to express their views and be involved in making decisions about their care
● People were involved in all aspects of the service they received from pre service assessment, care
planning, day to day decisions and reviews of care. A relative told us, "They don't do anything without
checking with him first." A person said, "The carers will always ask what help I need."
● Records viewed showed people were provided with information about the service, what it could and could
not do and what would happen when the planned re-ablement service was completed. People had signed
their assessments, care plans and reviews showing they had had the opportunity to read these.
● Following completion of the reablement service people were asked to complete a survey about their
experience of the service. The most recent responses for July to September 2020 showed everyone felt staff
listened to them and supported them to express their needs and wants.
● People were given a choice of male or female care staff. This information was included within care records
viewed and was part of the pre-service assessment process. Staff confirmed this information was known and
where people had expressed a preference this was met. This meant people were cared for by care staff they
felt comfortable with and had been able to make decisions about who provided their care.
Respecting and promoting people's privacy, dignity and independence
● People felt they were treated with dignity and respect and their independence was promoted.
A person confirmed this saying "Oh yes, the carers respect my privacy." A relative said, "The carers also
respect privacy when supporting with personal care."
● Staff explained how they respected people's privacy and dignity, particularly when supporting them with
Page
40 14 January 2021
12 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

personal care by, for example, ensuring doors and curtains were closed and people were covered up.
● Following completion of the reablement service people were asked to complete a survey about their
experience of the service. The most recent responses for July to September 2020 showed everyone agreed
staff had respected their privacy and dignity.
● The services primary goal was to enable people to be as independent as possible, care plans included reablement goals and detailed what each person hoped to achieve. Care plans were reviewed against these
goals.
● Care staff knew the level of support each person needed and what aspects of their care they could do
themselves. They were aware that people's independence was paramount and described how they assisted
people to maintain this whilst also providing care safely. One staff member said how rewarding it was to see
people becoming more independent. They said their goal was "re-ablement not disablement". Staff said
they had enough time to promote independence and enable people to undertake tasks themselves even
when this took a longer time.
● Following completion of the reablement service people were asked to complete a survey about their
experience of the service. The most recent responses for July to September 2020 showed everyone agreed
they had been supported to do things for themselves and had felt more confident and aware of what their
capabilities were.

Pagereport
41 14 January 2021
13 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection

Good

Is the service responsive?
Our findings
Responsive – this means we looked for evidence that the service met people's needs.
This is the first inspection for this service. This key question has been rated good.
This meant people's needs were met through good organisation and delivery.
Planning personalised care to ensure people have choice and control and to meet their needs and
preferences
● People received individualised care which met their needs. One relative told us, "I can't fault them, they
were all excellent, I wish we could have them back." They added, "They all knew what they were doing and
were very professional."
● Care plans provided information about how people wished to receive care and support. These identified
key areas of needs, such as, personal care, daily living activities, personal hygiene, dressing, meal
preparation and health issues. Care plans reflected people's individual needs and had clear re-ablement
goals. Care plans were reviewed at regular intervals or when a person's needs changed.
● The service was able to respond when people's needs changed. For example, they were able to provide
additional visits where a person lived alone and required support to meet their nutritional needs due to a
new health need.
● The service worked closely with the NHS and independent community providers. It was able to respond
when necessary to provide a service to enable rapid hospital discharge or when independent providers
could no longer support a person living in the community.
Meeting people's communication needs
Since 2016 onwards all organisations that provide publicly funded adult social care are legally required to
follow the Accessible Information Standard (AIS). The standard was introduced to make sure people are
given information in a way they can understand. The standard applies to all people with a disability,
impairment or sensory loss and in some circumstances to their carers.
● The registered manager told us they had access to different communication formats and staff would read
care plans to people with significant vision impairment.
● Care plans included information about people's communication needs, for example if they required
spectacles or hearing aids. Within one care plan we saw that staff were guided to give the person additional
time to process and respond to information or questions. This would help ensure the person would be able
to respond.
Supporting people to develop and maintain relationships to avoid social isolation; support to follow
interests and to take part in activities that are socially and culturally relevant to them
● As a re-ablement service' support to develop relationships and take part in activities was not provided.
However, care staff told that when they had additional time, they would use this to chat with people who
were living on their own to help reduce feelings of isolation.
● The service had contact details of other organisations who may be able to provide a befriending or other
Page
42 14 January 2021
14 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

community support service who they would direct people to, or contact on the person's behalf.
Improving care quality in response to complaints or concerns
● People and relatives told us they knew how to make a complaint. They said they would speak to the
'office' if they had a concern or complaint. One relative told us, "I have nothing whatsoever to complain
about."
● The provider had a complaints policy. Written information about how to complain was available for
people and relatives within the information provided to all new service users.
● People and relatives were also asked if they had any complaints when service reviews were undertaken.
Records of complaints were maintained, and action was taken when a complaint was received.
End of life care and support
● No one using the service was receiving end of life care at the time of our inspection. Some staff told us they
had attended end of life care training. They told us on occasions they had provided end of life care and
where this had occurred two staff had always been allocated.
● End of life care training was being completed by all staff.
● The registered manager provided us with assurances that people would be supported to receive good end
of life care and to ensure a comfortable, dignified and pain-free death. Furthermore, they told us they would
work closely with relevant healthcare professionals, provide support to people's families and other people
who used the service and ensure staff were appropriately trained.

Pagereport
43 14 January 2021
15 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection

Good

Is the service well-led?
Our findings
Well-Led – this means we looked for evidence that service leadership, management and governance assured
high-quality, person-centred care; supported learning and innovation; and promoted an open, fair culture.
This is the first inspection for this service. This key question has been rated Good.
This meant the service was consistently managed and well-led. Leaders and the culture they created
promoted high-quality, person-centred care.
Planning and promoting person-centred, high-quality care and support with openness; and how the
provider understands and acts on their duty of candour which is their legal responsibility to be open and
honest with people when something goes wrong
● People and staff felt the service was well-managed.
● The registered manager and management team had a clear vision and set of values for the service. This
included providing "Quality individual care for people, being customer and community focused, working
together, effective and efficient, fair and transparent." The services annual performance appraisal was based
on these values.
● The vision and values were cascaded to staff and monitored through training, staff meetings, and staff
supervision meetings.
● The management team were aware of and kept under review, the day to day culture in the service. This
was done through working alongside staff, one to one meetings and observations.
● The provider had a duty of candour policy that required staff to act in an open and transparent way when
accidents occurred. We saw that this process had been followed where required.
● The registered manager understood their responsibilities and had notified CQC about all incidents,
safeguarding concerns and events that were required.
Managers and staff being clear about their roles, and understanding quality performance, risks and
regulatory requirements: Continuous learning and improving care
● The provider had a formal process in place to monitor the quality of the service. This consisted of various
audits completed by the management team such as those undertaken on care records when these were
returned to the office. The provider's nominated individual, who, with the registered manager, was legally
responsible for the service, had undertaken a 'mock' inspection of the service in August 2020. This had
identified some minor areas for improvement which the registered manager was addressing.
● The registered manager had produced an ongoing service improvement plan. This showed that as new
areas for improvement were identified, these were added to the plan with clear information as to who and
by when action would be completed.
● There was a management structure in place, consisting of the registered manager, and senior staff
responsible for the day to day running of the service. Each had clear roles and responsibilities which they
understood and had the necessary skills to undertake.
● Staff were positive about working for the re-ablement service and support they received from the
management team and registered manager. Comments from staff included: "I really love this job. Everyone
Page
44 14 January 2021
16 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection
report

is really supportive and helpful." Another staff member said, "I can always get support or help if I need it." A
senior staff member was always available when staff were providing care. A staff member said, "There is
always someone in the office until we have all signed off for the night." This meant staff could receive
prompt support or advice whenever they required this.
Engaging and involving people using the service, the public and staff, fully considering their equality
characteristics
● People were consulted before, during and following completion of the re-ablement service. They had
signed assessments and care plans to confirm their agreement with the information about them and how
care would be provided.
● For many people the service provided was for short term, time limited re-enablement. When this was
completed all people were offered the opportunity to complete a questionnaire survey about the care they
had received. These were collated every three months to identify any patterns which may require action. The
results from April to September 2020 showed people were positive about the service they had received.
● A staff satisfaction survey had also been completed in September 2020. Although there had been a low
response rate by staff this did show that staff were generally happy working for the service and had been
provided with an opportunity to anonymously provide feedback to the management team.
● The service experienced low levels of staff turnover. Staff said they were happy working for the provider
and felt able to raise issues or concerns with the management team.
Working in partnership with others
● The re-ablement service had very close links with local health and social care services and worked in
collaboration with all relevant agencies, including health and social care professionals.
● An external social care professional told us they worked closely with the reablement service and the links
had been strengthened during the Covid-19 pandemic meaning people were able to receive the most
appropriate service for their needs.
● Some re-ablement staff were based within the local hospital to ensure prompt pre-service assessments
were completed. This facilitated smooth, effective hospital discharges. Staff also worked with community
health and social care professionals to prevent hospital admissions, wherever possible.
● Should people need to move to a longer-term community-based or residential service, senior staff were
clear about the need to share information to ensure a smooth transfer of care to new providers. This all
helped ensure people received the right care and support when they needed it.

Pagereport
45 14 January 2021
17 Adult Social Care, Community Re-ablement & Outreach Inspection

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for Health and Social Care Workplan 2021/22
Date of meeting

Item

Background

Isle of Wight Adult Safeguarding
Board Annual Report 2019-20

To consider the annual report (note this
has been delayed due to Covid)

Patient experience and feedback

To consider the role and function of
Patient Participation Groups and the
forming of links between these and
health scrutiny.

Healthwatch report on Suicide
prevention

To consider the report and
recommendations from a review
undertaken by Healthwatch

Isle of Wight Health and Care Plan

To consider any changes that may be
proposed to service change.

Integrated Care Partnership

To review the arrangements for the
Integrated Care Partnership as agreed
at the 14 January 2020 meeting. Item
delayed due to the impact of Covid on
working arrangements.

Adult social care complaints annual
report

To consider the annual complaints
report and look at the lessons learnt.

Isle of Wight Health and Care Plan

To consider any changes that may be
proposed to service change.

Isle of Wight Adult Safeguarding
Board Annual Report 2020-21

To consider the annual report

Public health strategy

To look at the progress with the delivery
of the strategy.

Isle of Wight Health and Care Plan

To consider any changes that may be
proposed to service change.

Isle of Wight Health and Care Plan

To consider any changes that may be
proposed to service change.

19 July 2021

13 September 2021

29 November 2021

14 March 2022

Since the last formal meeting of the Committee on 7 December 2021, the following have taken place :-





An informal members workplan session on 21 January 2021 which reviewed progress with issues
discussed at the formal meetings and identified possible future items.
An informal briefing from Healthwatch Isle of Wight on 4 February 2021 regarding its current and
future workplan.
An informal briefing from NHS England on 23 February 2021 regarding dental services on the Isle of
Wight.

Appendix 1 – Healthwatch Isle of Wight Survey
Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Islanders' priorities sought
News – 5 February 2021
It’s that time again when Healthwatch Isle of Wight would strongly urge Isle of Wight
residents to complete their priority survey.
The survey consists of a list of the top 20 most common Health or Care themes that
have been reported to Healthwatch Isle of Wight over the past 12 months, such as GP
services, care of older people, adult social care, and asks that people choose their top
5 priorities. The areas that receive the highest number of votes will become the next
areas that Healthwatch Isle of Wight will begin to work on.
Due to the covid-19 pandemic, there are many changes and challenges within the
health and care sector at the moment and Healthwatch play an important role in
ensuring the public are not adversely affected. In order to make sure we are as effective
as possible it is vital that people continue to share their experiences and contribute to
our surveys as it is this information we use to demonstrate the impact upon service
users to commissioners and service providers.
As a result of last year’s survey Healthwatch Isle of Wight has completed work on
Dentistry, Access to GP practices and Suicide Prevention, and work in these areas is
ongoing.
This survey will ensure that the voices of the Isle of Wight people are heard. With the
current financial and workforce challenges affecting both health and social care
services, it is more important than ever that local people have a say in how services are
delivered and improved`
- Joanna Smith – Healthwatch Isle of Wight Manager.
The survey is open now and will run until 10th March 2021.
Anyone who requires support to complete the survey or who wishes to share their
experiences (good or bad) of local health and/or care services with us can do so by
ringing 01983 608608 or by emailing enquiries@healthwatchisleofwight.co.uk
https://www.healthwatchisleofwight.co.uk/

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

